
1 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

 
 

MINUTES  
YANCEYVILLE TOWN COUNCIL  

JULY 9th, 2019 
7:00PM 

 
The meeting of the Town Council was held in the Council Chambers at the Yanceyville 
Municipal Services Building on Tuesday, July 9th, 2019 7:00 PM. 
 
Council Members present: Alvin Foster- Mayor, Odessa Gwynn- Mayor Pro Tem, 
Margie Badgett-Lampkin, and Brian Massey  
 
Council Members absent: Keith Tatum 
 
Staff: Town Manager/Clerk: Brian Collie, Town Clerk: Kamara Graves, and Town 
Attorney: Lee Farmer 
 
Item 1: Call to Order 
 
Mayor Alvin Foster called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Meeting opened with a silent 
prayer.  He asked all to stand for the pledge of allegiance.  Mayor Foster also stated that 
the Yanceyville Town Council rules and procedures reflect the revisions of the North 
Carolina Open Meeting Law of the North Carolina General Statues, a copy of the 
Yanceyville Town Council rules and procedures are available upon request. 
 
Item 2: Review and Adoption of Agenda – Mayor & Council 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council to review the agenda for adoption. After a short 
review, Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to adopt the agenda. The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Massey and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Item 3: Consent Agenda- June 4th, 2019 Minutes 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council to review the minutes from the June 4th,2019 Town 
Council Meeting. After a short review, Councilman Massey made a motion to adopt the 
minutes from the June 4th, 2019 Town Council Meeting as presented. The motion was 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn and passed a unanimous vote. 
 
Item 4: Public Comment 
 
Mr. Reece Cobb 7887 NC Highway 86 South Yanceyville NC, 27379. Mr. Cobb stated; I 
would like to discuss the events that happened in the May 7th, 2019 Town Council 
Meeting. He stated let’s start with the Planning Board Meeting which is a public meeting 
where the proposed zoning map was discussed. Mr. Cobb stated that Councilman Keith 
Tatum requested that four different parcels next to his property be changed back to R12 



2 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

(Residential Suburban District). Mr. Cobb stated Town Manager Collie presented 
Councilman Tatum’s request to the Planning Board. Mr. Cobb added that Town Manager 
Collie stated that I had tried in the past to get my land re-zoned. Mr. Cobb stated that 
Town Manager Collie had some concerns about a junk yard. Mr. Cobb noted that   a junk 
yard is not allowed in the Highway Business (HB) Zoning District.  Mr. Cobb stated that 
the Planning Board recommended during that meeting to keep the four parcels addressed 
as Highway Business on the proposed zoning map.  
 
Mr. Cobb stated that at the May 4th, 2019 Town Council Meeting Town Manager Collie 
explained to Town Council that the Planning Board made a recommendation that the 
parcels on the proposed zoning map mentioned by Councilman Tatum remain as 
Highway Business. Mr. Cobb stated that Town Manager Collie talks about the parcels 
that join his property, the parcel where the State stores equipment, and the possibility of 
getting a driveway that connects to the main road. Mr. Cobb added that Mayor Foster 
addressed the traffic issues that have since been resolved with the installation of a traffic 
light. Mr. Cobb added that apparently the land on the left side of the road (Highway 86) 
would cause a large influx of traffic, because the right side remained Highway Business. 
He stated that Mayor Foster explained the conditional use zoning district a new 
component added to the Zoning Ordinance that could be used for the properties 
discussed.  Mr. Cobb stated that conditional use zoning district should not have been 
mentioned during the meeting, because it was not part of the Town Zoning Ordinance at 
the time. He explained that during a quasi-judiciary hearing the only things that are 
supposed to be presented is facts, one’s opinion should not be used to make a decision. 
Mr. Cobb stated there has to factual reasons and none were presented that evening. He 
added that there should have been a mail notice sent to the property owners who were 
affected by the ruling on May 7th ,2019, because the proposed zoning map was actually 
amended from the original proposed zoning map that the Town presented to the public. 
Mr. Cobb stated, the motion to amend the zoning map on May 7th ,2019 was made by 
Mayor Foster and seconded by Councilman Tatum. He explained that NC General 
Statues states during a quasi-judiciary hearing that a bias person cannot discuss or vote on 
a matter that they are bias on. Mr. Cobb stated “it’s not hard to believe that Councilman 
Keith Tatum isn’t bias because of his previous request. I ask you to not only do what’s 
legal, but ethical to revisit and reverse the changes that were made to the proposed zoning 
map, Thank you.” 
 
Mayor Foster thanked Mr. Cobb and noted that Town Council will take his concerns 
under advisement. 
 
Item 5: Public Hearing- Discussion to Consider Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance 
Adult Gaming Establishments  
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to convene to Public Hearing. Mayor Pro 
Tem Gwynn made the motion to convene to Public Hearing. The motion was seconded 
by Councilman Massey and passed with a unanimous vote. 

Town Manager Collie updated Town Council Adult Gaming Establishments. Town 
Manager Collie explained that during the June 4th, 2019 Town Council Meeting, Town 



3 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

Council directed Town Staff to make note of a possible Text Amendment to Adult 
Gaming Establishments.   He explained that Town Council requested that the Planning 
Board review Adult Gaming Establishments regulations at their next scheduled meeting 
on June 19th, 2019.  

 
Town Council Suggested: 
Changing hours of Operation on Sundays from 10am- 12am (midnight) to 1pm-12am 
(midnight) and also remove “church, synagogue, temple, or any other religious building” 
from the regulations. 

 
Adult Gaming Establishments Regulations ADOPTED MAY 7th, 2019 

a. Adult gaming establishments may operate from 9:00am until 12:00am, Mondays 
through Saturdays, and 10:00am until 12:00am on Sundays. 

b. Adult gaming establishments shall not be located in the same building or on the 
same property where any public or private education facility, church, synagogue, 
temple, or any other religious building, bar, child care center, all residential 
dwellings, any general gaming establishment as a principal use, or any other 
existing adult gaming establishment is located. Adult gaming establishments shall 
also not be placed on properties within 200 feet of any of the aforementioned uses, 
measured from the closest point between the building housing the adult gaming 
establishment and the building housing the use from which the establishment must 
be distanced.  

c. Adult gaming establishments are prohibited in or as a part of any check cashing 
facility. 

d. All alcohol sales and consumption of alcohol is prohibited.  
e. No adult gaming establishment shall permit any person under the age of 18 to 

conduct games in the establishment or to supervise games in the establishment. 
f. The maximum number of terminals/computers/machines/gaming terminals and the 

maximum number of patrons using the electronic machines at one time shall be 20. 
g. The parking requirements for Indoor commercial recreation shall apply to all adult gaming 

establishments. 
 

Town Manager Collie explained that the Planning Board recommended to change the 
hours of operations to 1pm- 12am (midnight) on Sundays and NOT to remove church, 
synagogue, temple, or any other religious building from the Adult Gaming Establishment 
regulations. 

 
Mayor Foster noted that this is a Public Hearing and anyone who wishes to speak and offer 
public comment can do so at this time when making a comment please stand and state 
your name and address for the record. 
 
Ms. Michelle Adkins, 205 Dudley Street Danville Virginia, affiliated with Hot Spot, 
Adult Gaming Establishment. Ms. Adkins stated that she wanted to get a better 
understanding of the Adult Gaming Establishment regulations, so that Hot Spot can be in 
compliance with the Town’s ordinance. She asked would a decision be made today about 
the Adult Gaming Establishment? Mayor Foster answered a decision could possibly be 
made tonight, but Town Council will take all comments under advisement and bring this 



4 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

item back for vote at the next Town Council Meeting. He explained that Town Council 
tries to look at issues from all perspectives in order to be fair to every business no matter 
the type. He explained that because most of the Adult Gaming Establishments here in 
Town are located in strip shopping centers where often times churches are essentially 
side by side with the Adult Gaming Establishments. He explained that churches don’t 
operate on normal business hours as other business outlined in the regulations do. 
Churches normally operate on Sundays and Wednesdays and if the hours of operations on 
Sundays for Adult Gaming Establishments changed to 1pm -12am(midnight) it could 
potentially eliminate as much interference as possible with the Churches, while being 
fair. Mayor Foster explained that is the reason Town Council suggested the changed. Ms. 
Adkins asked does the time restraints apply to just Sundays or every day of the week, to 
shut down at 12am (midnight)? Town Manager Collie explained that all property owners 
with Adult Gaming Establishments businesses located on their property that the Town is 
aware of received a letter and notification explaining the regulations that were adopted by 
Town Council on May 7th, 2019. Town Manager Collie mentioned that time restraints 
and the location of an Adult Gaming Establishments are noted in the regulations. He 
explained that Adult Gaming Establishments that were in operation before the re-
adoption of the Zoning Ordinance will not be affected by the setbacks and locations 
requirements they are grandfathered. However, time restraints are enforceable and will 
have to be enforced. Town Manager Collie noted as for tonight the Public Hearing is 
simply for changing the hours of operation on Sundays and the removal of church, 
synagogue, temple, or any other religious building, from the regulations adopted. Town 
Manager Collie explained to Ms. Adkins that he could go over the regulations that were 
adopted by Town Council after the meeting or over the phone. Ms. Adkins stated, so the 
time constraints have already been voted on, and can’t be changed? Town Manager 
Collie noted that the time constraints have been voted on, but a Zoning Ordinance is a 
working document and can be amended. He explained that letters were sent out, but the 
time aspect has not been enforced in order to gives businesses the opportunity to adjust 
and to get a clear understanding of what the regulations and requirements are for Adult 
Gaming Establishments. Town Manager Collie added that the Town wants to work with 
business owners, but soon will have to start enforcing the time restraints. Ms. Adkins 
stated that she would have come before the Town sooner, but was unaware of the 
changes. She explained the Hot Spot is the only Adult Gaming Establishments in 
Yanceyville that is open 24 hours, 7 days a week, and business will be greatly affected by 
the changes. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn asked how many seats, or gaming machines does Hot Spot have? 
Ms. Adkins noted that they have several fish tables, computer games, and stand up 
machines. She explained that most of their business takes place between 7pm and 5am.  
She added that she would like Town Council to reconsider the time restraints so that they 
are able to stay open 24 hours. She also mentioned that Hot Spot is willing to meet the 
needs and concerns of others with their hours of operation being 24 hours. Ms. Adkins 
stated that Hot Spot takes safety very seriously, and have a certified armed Security 
Guard on Staff. Mayor Foster asked does Security monitor the outside? Ms. Adkins 
explained that security does monitor the outside/parking lot. She noted that having 



5 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

Security on Staff that help assist and prevent issues from happening, and if needed law 
enforcement is called. 
 
Ms. Ruby Graves, 1525 Main Street Yanceyville NC. Ms. Graves asked how is the Town 
going to address convenient store with Adult Gaming Machines? Town Manager Collie 
explained that the hours of operation for the store will not be affected, but the Adult 
Gaming Machines within the store will be affected. He explained that the ALE from the 
state of North Carolina regulates Adult Gaming Establishment/Machines. The Town has 
no jurisdiction on regulating whether these businesses are legal or illegal. The Town 
however, has a Zoning Ordinance which will only regulates Adult Gaming 
Establishments/Machines by time and location. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn asked does the State prohibit the sale of alcohol in Adult Gaming 
Establishments? Town Manager Collie explained in reference to convenient stores and 
the sale of alcohol that’s not to be consumed while on premise with adult gaming 
machines was addressed is with the recodification of the Zoning Ordinance. All sales and 
consumption of alcohol is prohibited where Adult Gaming Machines are located. The 
convenient store will have to choose to either sale alcohol or have adult gaming 
machines. 
 
Mayor Foster asked for any other comments.  
 
After the discussion, Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to go out of Public 
Hearing for Discussion to Consider Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Adult 
Gaming Establishments. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to go out of Public 
Hearing. The motion was seconded by Councilman Massey and passed with a unanimous 
vote. 
 
Mayor Foster suggested that since there are a few details that need to be considered rather 
than taking a vote on this one particular matter move this item to next month’ s agenda to 
take action.  
 
Town Manager Collie explained that since tonight was a Public Hearing, and no action 
was taken other than hearing public comments does Town Council want additional 
testimonies from the public at the next meeting before Town Council adopts, if so then 
Town Council needs to go back into Public Hearing and state the action. 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to go back into Public Hearing. Mayor 
Pro Tem Gwynn made the motion to go back into Public Hearing. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Badgett Lampkin and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to recess the Public Hearing until the 
August 13th, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made the 
motion to recess the Public Hearing until the August 13th, 2019 Town Council Regular 
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Badgett Lampkin and passed with 
a unanimous. 



6 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to go out of Public Hearing for 
Discussion to Consider Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Adult Gaming 
Establishments. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to go out of Public Hearing. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Massey and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
 
Item 6: Bright Leaf Hoedown Discussion- Amanda Hodges, Chamber of Commerce 
Director   
  
Town Manager Collie introduced Ms. Amanda Hodges, Caswell Chamber of Commerce 
Director to Town Council to speak specifically about the upcoming Hoedown Saturday 
21st,2019 and the possibility of serving alcohol during the event. He noted that the Town 
of Yanceyville has a Pavilion Use Policy which includes the stage and property 
surrounding the stage. He explained that Town Council amended the Pavilion Use Policy 
on March 20th, 2018 to allow for the sale and offer of alcohol on the premise based off 
several requirements within the policy. Town Manager Collie explained that a location 
hasn’t been secured at this time, but Ms. Hodges wanted to speak with Town Council 
about the possibility of utilizing Town property as the location to sale alcohol. He 
explained that this is an open discussion, and Ms. Hodges is here to answer any questions 
and address any concerns. 
 
Mayor Foster noted that the policy was amended to accommodate the sale and offer 
alcohol on Town property, and if the requirements and regulations of the policy are 
satisfied then the Town should follow policy. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn asked Ms. Hodges will the sale of alcohol be on Town Property 
or at another establishment? 
 
Ms. Hodges thanked Town Council for the opportunity to speak in reference to the sale of 
alcohol at the Hoedown. Ms. Hodges stated that I am respectfully requesting that Town 
Council give permission within the Pavilion Use Policy to allow the serving of alcohol. 
She explained that as Town Manager Collie suggested we don’t have secure location at 
this time. Ms. Hodges noted she felt it is very important for Town Council to know the 
plans of the Hoedown and to make sure that everyone is on the same page. Ms. Hodges 
mentioned that she has meet with the Sheriff Durden and created a safety plan for the 
event She mentioned that Sheriff Durden offered to have additional Sheriff Deputies 
available to assist with overseeing the location where the alcohol is sold and consumed.  
 
Ms. Hodges thanked Town Council for their time and asked everyone to spread the word 
about the Hoedown scheduled for Saturday September 21, 2019. 
 
Item 7: DEEDS Discussion of Old Middle School Building 
 
Town Manager Collie introduced Mr. Michael Graves, DEEDS President to Town 
Council. He noted that DEEDS own the old Dillard Middle School located off of School 



7 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

Dr and has been before Town Council several times in the pass as far as trying to figure 
out some type of rehabilitation for this property. Town Manager Collie noted that he had 
spoken with Mr. Graves and suggested that he come before Town Council and give an 
update on what current potentials are, options, and how the Town can assist DEEDS. Mr. 
Graves thanked Town Council for the opportunity to speak about DEEDS. Mr. Graves 
explained that Landmark, potential investor for DEEDs explained that DEEDS would not 
meet their standards due to the road location. Mr. Graves stated that he had spoken with 
Town Manager Collie about the possibility of a cut through road, and they both agreed 
that it would not be ideal for a Senior facility. He explained that DEEDS is exploring 
several possibilities such as restoring the gym, having a community pool, and a 
community store in the Senior Facility. Mr. Graves also mentioned that because of the 
location of DEEDS secluded and off the main road it is not talked about enough. He 
noted that DEEDS is a Historical Site would love to save the building.  
Mr. Graves asked the Town for a commitment that when DEEDS starts seeking funding 
the Town could write letters of support to help with securing funding. 
 
Mayor Foster stated that he has been talking with Michael Blaire, Piedmont Regional 
Triad Council to help assist in seeking grant sources that could potentially help with 
revitalization and housing rehabilitation for homes in the area surrounding DEEDS.  He 
explained that DEEDS could potentially score higher with funding sources as well as 
help property owners in the community. Mayor Foster stated that the Town will assist 
DEEDS in anyway. 
 
Mr. Graves thanked Town Council for their time. 
 
Item 8: Town Attorney Report  
 
None 
 
Item 9: Town Manager Report 
 
Town Manager Collie updated Town Council on non- conforming uses. He explained 
that the Town has to establish if a property is considered a non- conforming use. He 
added that there are several properties in the Town that are considered a non- conforming 
use. Non- conforming use means a nonconforming situation that occurs when property is used 
for a purpose or in a manner made unlawful by the use regulations applicable to the district in 
which the property is located (for example, a commercial office building in a residential district 
may be a nonconforming use). The term also refers to the activity that constitutes the use made of 
the property (for example, all the activity associated with running a bakery in a residential 
zoned area is a nonconforming use.) A nonconforming use may be changed to a 
conforming use. Thereafter, the property may not revert to a nonconforming use. If active 
operations of a nonconforming use are discontinued for a continuous period of six months, 
the property involved shall thereafter be used only for a conforming use. Town Manager 
Collie explained that unless the Town establishes a property as a non-conforming use in 
certain situations that could be averse to surrounding property owners the Town has no 
legal standing that could safeguard the Town or surrounding property owners. He noted 



8 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

that the Planning Board along with Town Staff will identify and list properties considered 
a non-conforming use and report findings back to Town Council.  
 
Town Manager Collie announced First Friday, August 2nd, 2019 7:00pm featuring the 
Retro Band along with the Cruise-in welcoming all cars, trucks, and motorcycles at the 
Yanceyville Pavilion in case of rain the concert will take place inside of the Municipal 
Services Building. Food will be available for purchase by Post 210. 
 
Town Manager Collie also announced that the August Town Council Meeting has been 
rescheduled to August 13th,2019 at 7:00pm. 
  
 Town Manager Collie reminded Town Council of the Joint Council Meeting (Caswell 
County, Town of Milton, and Town of Yanceyville) Thursday, August 15th, 2019 6:00pm 
at the Municipal Services Building. Hosted by the Town of Yanceyville. The meeting is 
open to the public. 
 
Town Manager Collie announced the North Carolina League of Municipalities 2019 
NCBEMO Summer Conference August 4, 2019 - August 6, 2019. 
 
Town Manager Collie announced the North Carolina League of Municipalities 
2019 North Carolina Association of Municipal Clerk Conference August 15, 2019- 
August 17, 2019 Town Clerk Graves will attend. 
 
Item 10: Closed Session -G.S. 143-318.11- Economic Development, Contractual, and 
Personnel  
 
Mayor Foster asked for a motion. Councilman Massey made a motion to go into Closed 
Session General Statues 143-318.11 Economic Development, Contractual, and Personnel. 
The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
After Town Council re-entered the chambers from Closed Session, Mayor Foster asked 
for a motion to come out of Closed Session. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to 
come out of Closed Session. The motion was seconded by Councilman Massey and 
passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mayor Foster asked for a motion to go back into Regular Session. Mayor Pro Tem 
Gwynn made a motion to go back to into Regular Session. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Massey and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mayor Foster stated that while in Closed Session in reference to Economic Development 
Town Council made a request for the Planning Board to look at creating a Highway 
Business II Zoning District. The HBII Zone will not allow all of the permitted uses that 
are allowed in the Highway Business Zone. The HBII Zone would allow some of the 
marginal tracts of land in the Town to be developed as Highway Business. The HBII 
Zone would have more restrictions so that they are harmonious with any surrounding 
residential properties and reducing or eliminating any conflicts with traffic and safety. 



9 
Yanceyville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes July 9th, 2019 

He noted that Town Council will move forward on the request after a recommendation is 
received from the Planning Board. 
 
Item 11: Informal Discussion/ Public Comment – Discussion & Comments must  
directly relate to agenda items  
 
Mayor Foster opened the floor for discussion and or comments on items relate to the 
Agenda. Mayor Foster thanked everyone for attending the meeting.  
 
Item 12: Adjournment  
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to adjourn the Town Council Meeting. 
After no further discussion, Councilwoman Badgett-Lampkin made a motion to adjourn 
the Town Council Meeting. Councilman Massey seconded the motion that passed with a 
unanimous vote.   
 
Brian Collie- Town Manager/Clerk and Kamara Graves-Town Clerk prepared the above 
minutes.  They represent a brief description of those matters that were addressed at this 
meeting.  A detailed account of this meeting is available for review on tape at the 
Yanceyville Municipal Services Building. 
 
 
Respectively Submitted: 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Alvin Foster, Mayor  

 
____________________________________________________ 
Brian Collie, Town Manager / Clerk 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Kamara Graves, Town Clerk 
 


